RESOLUTION NO. 91-12-1

Adopted by the Board of Directors of the Sacramento-Placerville Transportation Corridor Authority on the date of:

December 2, 1991

ADOPTING BOARD RULES OF PROCEDURE

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SACRAMENTO-PLACERVILLE TRANSPORTATION CORRIDOR AUTHORITY AS FOLLOWS:

THAT, the Rules of Procedure governing Board meetings as set forth in the attached Exhibit "A" are hereby approved and adopted.

Trantland Johnson, Chair

ATTEST:

MARK W. GILBERT, Secretary

Alaine Ross,

Assistant Secretary

EXHIBIT "A"

RULES OF PROCEDURE

Adopted by Resolution No. 91-12-1

SACRAMENTO-PLACERVILLE TRANSPORTATION CORRIDOR JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY

BOARD RULES

ARTICLE 1

MEETINGS

Section 1.1 Regular Meetings.

The Regular Meetings of the Sacramento-Placerville Transportation Corridor Joint Powers Authority ("Authority") Board of Directors, hereinafter referred to as "Board," shall be held no less frequently than on the third Monday of each calendar quarter at the hour of 9:00 a.m. in the Rancho Cordova Chamber of Commerce, 11070 White Rock Road, Suite 170, Rancho Cordova, California 15670. Whenever a Regular Meeting falls on a legal holiday, said meeting shall be redesignated by the Board at its Regular Meeting immediately prior to such holiday. If, for any other reason, the Board decides to change the date of a Regular Meeting, said meeting shall be designated by the Board at its Regular Meeting immediately Absence of such designation, any prior to the said meeting. meeting other than the next regularly scheduled meeting, shall be called and noticed as a Special Meeting. Legal holiday, as used above, shall mean those days defined as legal holidays in Government Code Sections 6700 and 6701.

Section 1.2 Special Meetings.

A Special Meeting may be called at any time by the Chair, or by a majority of the members of the Board, by delivering personally or by mail, written notice to each member of the Board and to each local newspaper of general circulation, radio, or television station requesting notice in writing. Such notice must be delivered and received at least 24 hours before the time of such meeting. The call and notice shall specify the time and place of the Special Meeting and the business to be transacted. No business other than as specified in the notice shall be considered at such

meeting. Such written notice may be dispensed with as to any member who, at or prior to the time the meeting convenes, files with the Secretary of the Authority a written waiver of notice. Such waiver may be given by telegram. Any defect in the above notice procedure will be deemed cured by actual attendance of the notice at the meeting. (Government Code Section 54956.)

Section 1.3 Conduct of Meetings.

All meetings of the Board shall be held in accordance with Chapter 9 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5 of the California Government Code (commencing with 54950) (California Open Meeting Law).

Section 1.4 Adjournment of Meeting.

The Board may adjourn any Regular, adjourned Regular, Special or adjourned Special Meeting to a time and place specified in the order of adjournment. Less than a quorum may so adjourn from time to time. Notice of adjournment of a duly called Special Meeting at which less than a quorum is present shall be given in the same If all members are manner as notice of the original meeting. absent from any Regular or adjourned Regular Meeting, the Secretary of the Authority may declare the meeting adjourned to a stated time and place and he or she shall cause a written notice of the adjournment to be given in the same manner as provided herein for Special Meetings. In the case of all adjournments, a copy of the order or notice of adjournment shall be conspicuously posted on the door to the room in which Authority meetings are held, within 24 hours after the time of the adjournment. When an order of adjournment of any meeting fails to state the time at which the adjourned meeting is to be held, it shall be held at the time specified for Regular Meetings. (Government Code Section 54955.)

Section 1.5 Session.

The Chair shall take the chair and call the Board to order. In the absence of the Chair, the Secretary shall call the meeting to order, whereupon the members present, by an order entered in the minutes, shall select one of the members to act as Chair Pro Tem, who, while so acting, shall have all of the authority of the Chair. Upon the arrival of the Chair, the Chair Pro Tem shall relinquish the chair upon the conclusion of the business immediately before the Board. Notwithstanding the foregoing, where the presiding Chair or Chair Pro Tem is called from the chair for a short period during a meeting to which he or she will return, he or she may appoint a member of the Board to preside until his or her return without interrupting the proceeding for the purpose of electing a Chair Pro Tem.

Section 1.6 Roll Call.

Before proceeding with the business of the Authority, the roll of the members shall be called by the Secretary and the names of those present shall be entered in the minutes.

Section 1.7 Quorum.

Three (3) Directors of the Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, except that less than a quorum may adjourn from time to time. Except as provided in Section 3.1111, actions of the Board shall require the affirmative vote of four-fifths (4/5) of the Board.

Section 1.8 Minutes.

The Secretary shall furnish each Board member a copy of the minutes of each meeting with the agenda for the following meeting.

Section 1.9 Approval of Minutes.

The minutes may be approved without reading unless such reading is requested by a member. A copy of the approved minutes of each meeting shall be inserted in the Authority's Minute Book.

Section 1.10 Meetings to be Open to the Public.

All meetings of the Authority and its committees shall be open to the public unless the subject matter is a proper one for executive session. All meetings shall comply with the provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act. (Government Code Sections 54950, et seq.)

Section 1.11 Vote.

The vote upon an action item shall be "ayes" and "noes" pursuant to roll call and so recorded. Each ordinance or resolution shall be in written or printed form.

Notwithstanding Section 3.117, the following actions require five votes of the Board, and each director or alternate voting in accordance with the direction given by his or her appointing body:

A. To order formation of an assessment of special tax district;

- B. To authorize the sale of bonds;
- C. To make a financial commitment with a term of more than one (1) year;
- D. To determine the amount of the initial contributions of start-up funds, and to adopt or to amend the method of allocating contribution obligations of the Sacramento-Placerville Transportation Corridor Joint Powers Authority.

Section 1.12 Continuing Body.

The Board shall be a continuing body and no measure pending before it shall be abated or discontinued by reason of the expiration of the term of office or removal of a member of the Board.

Section 1.13 Discussion Only Through Chair; Limitation of Discussion; Disqualification of Members.

Persons in attendance may address the Board or member thereof only through the Chair. Members of the Board may address one another or persons in attendance only through the Chair.

Except as otherwise herein provided, discussion on any particular meeting either by a Board member or by any person in attendance may be limited, in the discretion of the Chair, to such time as the Chair may find to be reasonable under the circumstances, provided that any decision of the Chair to limit discussion may be overruled by the Board.

Any member who is legally disqualified from participating in Authority action on any particular matter shall, as soon as such matter is reached on the agenda, disclose his or her disqualification and the reason therefor and shall take no part in the discussion, debate or vote on such matter. If the disqualification is not known to him or her at the time such matter is reached on the agenda, he or she shall make such disclosure as soon as his or her disqualification is known to him or her.

Section 1.14 Executive Sessions.

Executive Sessions shall be held only on those matters which the Ralph M. Brown Act (Government Code Section 54950 et seq.) and court decisions recognize as proper matters to be held in Executive Session. These include, but may not be limited to, the following matters:

(a) To consider the appointment, employment, or dismissal of

an officer or employee, or to hear complaints and charges against such officer or employee. The officer or employee, however, may request the hearing be made public. This section shall not be construed as granting anyone the right to a hearing they do not already have by virtue of some other authority.

- (b) To consider any matter affecting the national security.
- (c) To meet with the Attorney General, District Attorney, Sheriff, or Chief of Police or other authorized representatives on matters posing a threat to the security of Authority buildings, public services or facilities.
- (d) To negotiate labor matters once a labor conciliator, mediator or arbitrator has been requested to participate in the negotiations.

Section 1.15 Time, Rules and Agenda of Executive Session.

An Executive Session shall be held only during a Regular or Special Meeting, in full compliance with these Rules of Procedure, and in accordance with the disclosure provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act. As applicable, disclosure on the agenda under the topic "Executive Session" shall be substantially as follows:

- (a) "To discuss matters pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(a): Smith v. Authority." (for filed claims and litigation)
- (b) "To discuss matters pursuant to Government Code Section 54945.9(b)(1)." (where there is a significant exposure to litigation against Authority)
- (c) "To discuss matters pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(b)(2)." (to determine if facts and circumstances warrant Executive Session under Section 54956.9(b)(1))
- (d) "Regarding terms of purchase/sale/lease of real property located at _____ and negotiations with _____ representing the owner of said property."
- (e) "To discuss matters pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(c), based on existing facts and circumstances, the legislative body has decided or is deciding whether to initiate litigation."

When an Executive Session is the only reason for calling a Special Meeting, the call shall specify the time and place of the Special

-5-

Meeting, the business to be transacted, and such disclosure as is required under the Ralph M. Brown Act. Where the session is for a personnel matter, the officer or employee involved must be notified of the nature of the session and in what way it applies to him or her.

Section 1.16 Executive Session Minutes and Action.

The Chair shall report at the public meeting during which the Executive Session is held or at the next subsequent public meeting any action taken during Executive Session, and the roll call vote thereon, to appoint, employ, or dismiss an employee.

ARTICLE 2

OFFICERS

Section 2.1 Chair.

The Chair, or in his or her absence, the Chair Pro Tem, may move, second and debate from the chair, subject only to such limitations of debate as are by these rules imposed on all members, and shall not be deprived of the rights or privileges of a member by reason of his or her occupying the chair. In an action to adopt a motion, resolution or ordinance, the Chair or Chair Pro Tem presiding at the meeting shall vote after all other members present have cast their vote.

Section 2.2 Chair Responsibilities.

The Chair shall preside and preserve order at all regular meetings, special meetings and hearings of the Board. The Chair shall state every question coming before the Board, announce the decision of the Board on all subjects and decide all questions of order without debate, subject, however, to an appeal by a member of the Board. The Chair or the Chair Pro Tem shall sign all Board resolutions and all minutes of Board meetings or hearings which he or she has witnessed being adopted or approved.

Section 2.3 Secretary.

The Board shall select a Secretary who may, but need not, be a member of the Board. The Secretary shall have the following powers and duties;

(a) Post agendas and sign a declaration of the time and place

-6-

where each agenda was posted and maintain a file of those declarations with the corporate records.

- (b) Attend all meetings and hearings of the Board and keep minutes of such meetings or hearings in the Authority's Minute Book.
- (c) Attest all resolutions of the Board and the minutes of all meetings or hearings which shall have been approved by the Board, and he or she shall have custody of same.
- (d) Keep and have custody of all books, records and papers of the Authority, and certify true copies thereof whenever necessary.
- (e) Perform such other duties as may be required either by statute, ordinance, resolution or order.
- (f) Call the Board to order in absence of the Chair.

Section 2.4 Elections.

Election of any officer of the Authority shall be by nomination, closing of nominations and balloting on nominees. Before the declaration of the result of the vote, a unanimous ballot may be cast for the successful candidate.

Section 2.5 Board of Directors.

The Authority shall be administered by a board of directors ("Board") consisting of five directors and five alternates. director and one alternate shall be current members of the Sacramento Regional Transit District Board of Directors; director and one alternate shall be current members of the Sacramento County Board of Supervisors; one director and one alternate shall be current members of the El Dorado County Board of Supervisors; and one director and alternate shall be current Each director and each members of the Folsom City Council. alternate shall be appointed by the Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors or City Council of which he or she is a member and shall serve at the pleasure of the appointing agency. Alternates shall serve as directors in the absence of the representing the same jurisdiction as the alternate. The four directors so appointed shall appoint the fifth director and alternate, who shall be public members at large serving for a fixed term of such duration as is provided by the Board at the time of appointment.

Section 2.6 Vacancy.

In the event that a vacancy should occur on the Board because of death, resignation, illness, or for other reason, the remaining members of the Board shall, within thirty (30) days after such vacancy adopt a resolution for transmittal to the jurisdiction appointing the individual whose absence caused the vacancy requesting such jurisdiction to appoint a replacement within sixty (60) days of the transmittal of said resolution.

ARTICLE 3

ORDER OF BOARD BUSINESS

Section 3.1 Agenda.

The order of business shall be as follows:

- 1. Call to order at 9:00 a.m.
- Roll Call.
- 3. Introduction of special guests.
- 4. Public Hearings.
- 5. Special Presentations.
- 6. Approval of Minutes.
- 7. Consent Calendar.
- 8. Unfinished Business.
- 9. New Business.
- 10. Citizens address Board on matters not on the agenda.
- 11. Reports Committee Chairman or Board appointees.
- 12. Ideas and questions from Directors.
- 13. Communications.
- 14. Miscellaneous.
- 15. Executive Session.

NOTE: The foregoing order of business may be changed after opening of a session, upon order of the Chair with consent of the Board or upon motion of the Board.

Section 3.2 Contents of Agenda.

The agenda shall specify the time and location of the meeting and shall contain a brief general description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meting. The description shall be reasonably calculated to adequately inform the public of the general matter or subject matter of each agenda item. Matters shall be listed in the order specified in Section 3.131 above and

shall contain the following notation:

*NOTE TO CITIZEN PARTICIPANTS

"It is the policy of the Board of Directors of the Sacramento-Placerville Transportation Corridor Joint Powers Authority to encourage citizen participation in the meetings of the Board of Directors. At each open meeting, members of the public shall be provided with an opportunity to directly address the Board on items of interest to the public that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board of Directors. However, in order that business scheduled for consideration at such meetings may be disposed of in an orderly manner, citizens wishing to address the Board on matters not on the agenda, whose presentations may be lengthy or in the nature of request for action of some kind on the part of the Board, are requested to first discuss such matters with the Chair or his/her designee. If after such consultation an appearance before the Board is desired, the subject matter may be calendared as an agenda item for a date and time convenient to the parties concerned."

Members of the public who wish to address the Board on matters not listed on the agenda, but on an item coming within the jurisdiction of the Board, shall be provided with the opportunity to do so under the agenda item heading "Citizens Address the Board on Matters not on Agenda." The Chair may, in the absence of objection from members of the Board, specify a time limitation on any presentation made before the Board of Directors. The Chair shall not limit presentations made by members of the public to under three (3) minutes. The Board shall not act upon or discuss an item that is not listed on the agenda as provided under Section 3.136.

Section 3.3 Consent Calendar.

The Consent Calendar shall consist of matters requiring Board action of either a routine nature or on which staff comment is not appropriate or necessary, or which have previously been discussed and appear on the Agenda for final action only.

The Chair, or Chair Pro Tem acting in the absence of the Chair, may authorize those items to be listed on the Consent Calendar agenda. All items listed under the Consent Calendar, exempting those individual items which the Chair reserves for separate treatment at the request of any Board member, may be acted upon by a single motion.

Section 3.4 Agenda Preparation, Delivery and Posting.

A written agenda for each meeting shall be prepared, delivered and posted as follows:

- A written agenda, together with all supporting documents, of the business of each Regular Meeting shall be prepared by the Secretary and mailed or delivered to the Board members, Authority Legal Counsel, and the press at least three (3) days before the meeting. The purpose of the agenda is to give Board members at least two (2) days' notice of all business coming before them. Notice of Regular Meeting without supporting documents shall be mailed at least one week (seven [7] days) before the meeting to any owner of property located within the jurisdiction of the member agencies who has filed a written request for such notice with the Authority. the case of Special Meetings which may be called less than seven (7) days in advance of the meeting date, the requesting property owner shall receive such notice as soon as may be practical under the circumstances.
- (b) The written agenda for each Regular Meeting and for every meeting continued for more than five (5) calendar days shall be posted at least 72 hours before the meeting is scheduled to begin. The written agenda for every Special Meeting shall be posted at least 24 hours before the Special Meeting s scheduled to begin. The agenda shall be posted in a location that is freely accessible to members of the public.

Section 3.5 Submission of Materials for Agenda.

Material intended for placement on the Agenda for a regular meeting shall be delivered to the Secretary on or before 12:00 Noon on the eleventh (11th) day before the meeting.

Section 3.6 Matters Requiring Board Action.

A matter requiring Board action must be listed on the posted agenda before the Board may act upon it. The Board may take action on items of business not appearing on the posted agenda under any of the following conditions:

- (a) Upon a determination by a majority of a quorum of the Board of Directors that an emergency situation exists, as defined in Section 54945.5 of the Government Code.
- (b) Upon a determination by a two-third (2/3) vote of the Board of Directors, or, if less than 2/3 of the Directors are present, a unanimous vote of those Directors present, that the need to take action arose subsequent to the Agenda being posted.
- (c) The item was properly posted for a prior meeting of the

Board of Directors occurring not more than five (5) calendar days prior to the date action is taken on the time, and at the prior meeting the item was continued to the meeting at which action is being taken.

By directing the Secretary to place an item of business (d) for discussion and/or action on a subsequent Agenda.

ARTICLE 4

HEARING

Section 4.1 Public Hearings.

Consideration of a matter regularly set for hearing before the Board shall proceed in the following order:

- Chair announces question. 1.
- Staff makes presentation. 2.
- Proponents address Board. 3.
- Secretary reads communication from proponent (unless same has been read by one of the speakers).
- (Proponents first and opponents last.) Rebuttals. 5.
- Ouestions. 6.
- Hearing declared closed. 7.
- Discussion or postponement by Board.
- Action by Board. 9.

Section 4.2 Speaking Restriction.

Each citizen appearing at a hearing before the Board shall be limited to five (5) minutes in his or her initial presentation. If he or she desires further time, he or she may request same before returning to his or her seat, in which event the Chair may, in his or her discretion, permit further remarks either before or after all other speakers on his or her side have been heard and before proceeding to the next order in the hearing. Any citizen addressing the Board may submit written statements, petitions or other documents to complement his or her presentation. A person appearing in rebuttal shall be limited to two (2) minutes.

Section 4.3 Close of Hearing.

Members of the Board may ask questions of a speaker at any time. Members shall not speak on the subject being heard until after the hearing is declared closed by the Chair.

Section 4.4 Continuation of Hearings.

Subject to the requirements of law, a hearing may be continued by the Board from time to time. In continuing such hearing, the Board shall specify the time and place to which the hearing will be continued.

Section 4.5 Continuation of Deliberations.

Subject to the requirements of law, the Board may take under submission for a reasonable period of time any matter which has been heard before it and may for this purpose continue its deliberations on such matter from time to time. In continuing such deliberations, the Board shall specify the time and place at which such deliberations will be continued.

Section 4.6 Decorum.

While the Board is in session the members must preserve order and decorum, and a member shall neither by conversation, or otherwise, delay or interrupt the proceedings or the peace of the Board nor disturb any member while speaking, nor refuse to obey the orders of the Board or its presiding officer.

ARTICLE 5

PERSONS ADDRESSING BOARD

Section 5.1 Addressing Board.

The regular time for citizens to address the Board shall be when the Chair in due order of business invites them to do so. At other times, permission to address the Board shall be at his discretion. A citizen desiring to address the Board shall give his or her name, address and group affiliation, if any, to the Secretary for the record and address the Chair.

Section 5.2 Impertinence.

Any citizen making personal, impertinent or indecorous remarks while addressing the Board may be barred by the Chair from further appearance before the Board at that meeting or hearing, unless permission to continue be granted by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the Board.

Section 5.3 Citizen Defined.

"Citizen" under these rules shall be deemed to mean any resident living within the activated boundaries of any of the cities or counties participating in the Authority or the authorized legal representative of such person. All other persons shall first secure permission of the Chair before addressing the Board. After any motion has been presented, the Board may grant permission to any person to address it.

ARTICLE 6

<u>MEMBERS</u>

Section 6.1 Synopsis in Minutes.

The Secretary shall enter in the minutes a synopsis of the discussion of any question coming before the Board. During the consideration on any particular matter, a Board member may make a request that the minutes reflect more than the customary detail on that item.

Section 6.2 Speaking Privileges.

Any member desiring to speak shall address the Chair and upon recognition by the Chair shall confine himself or herself to the question under debate, avoiding all personalities and indecorous language.

Section 6.3 Speaking Interruption.

A member shall not be interrupted when speaking unless it be to call him or her to order, for the purpose of explanation, or to permit solicited responses. If a member, while speaking, be called to order, he or she shall cease speaking and resume his or her seat until the question of order is determined, when, if permitted, he or she may proceed.

Section 6.4 Debate Closing.

The member moving the adoption of an ordinance, resolution or motion shall have the privilege of closing the debate.

Section 6.5 Motion Reconsideration.

A motion to reconsider any action taken by the Board may be made only on the day such action was taken, either during the same session or at an adjourned session thereof. Such motion must be made by a member on the prevailing side and seconded by any member. The motion, which may be made at any time during said meeting, has precedence over all other motions. The motion to reconsider is debatable unless the action to be reconsidered is undebatable.

ARTICLE 7

OFFICIAL ACTIONS

Section 7.1 Action.

Motions and resolutions, unless laid over by a majority vote of the Board, may be acted upon the day of introduction or presentation. No continuance shall be granted if the effect of such a continuance is to render a subsequent vote on the issue.

Section 7.2 Ordinances.

The usual course of procedure with an ordinance shall be to lay it over for one meeting from the date of introduction or presentation, before calling it up for action, and to have the Secretary furnish a copy of each ordinance introduced, or presented, to each member of the Board as soon as possible after its introduction. The enacting clause of all ordinances shall be as follows: "The Board of Directors of the Sacramento-Placerville Transportation Corridor Joint Powers Authority do ordain as follows:"

Section 7.3 Ordinance Effective Date.

No ordinance shall become effective until thirty (30) days from and after the date of its final passage, except:

- (a) An ordinance calling or otherwise relating to an election.
- (b) An ordinance for the immediate preservation of the public health, peace and safety, which contains a declaration of, and the facts constituting, its urgency and is passed by a four-fifths (4/5) vote of the Board of Directors unless five (5) official votes are required as provided in Section 3.1111.

-14-

(c) Other ordinances governing by particular provisions of state law prescribing the manner of their passage and adoption.

Section 7.4 Votes, Signature and Attestation.

Every ordinance and resolution shall be signed by the Chair/Chair Pro Tem (depending upon who presided at the meeting of enactment) and attested by the Secretary. The votes cast on an ordinance shall be entered on the face of the ordinance.

Section 7.5 Ordinance Publication.

The following directive shall be included in each ordinance of a general nature. "The Authority Secretary is hereby directed to publish this ordinance in full within fifteen (15) days after adoption." Before the expiration of fifteen (15) days after passage of an ordinance, it shall be published once, with the names of the members voting for and against it, in a newspaper of general circulation published in the counties encompassing the member agencies.

Section 7.6 Codification.

Ordinances and resolutions may be codified in the manner established for counties pursuant to Government Code Sections 21526-25130.

Section 7.7 Effect of Motion.

Motions shall be considered an act of the Authority and carry the same weight as a resolution.

Section 7.8 Majority Minimum.

The affirmative vote of a majority of members present shall be necessary to pass any motion, except that a majority of the full board shall be required to enact any ordinance and two-thirds (2/3) vote of the full Board shall be required to amend these rules according to Section 3.191 herein.

ARTICLE 8

COMMITTEES

Section 8.1 Appointment.

The Chair shall appoint all standing and special (ad hoc) committees.

Section 8.2 Standing Committee Meetings.

All the provisions of these rules with respect to notice of a Special Meeting, including written notice to the press, shall apply to the meeting of a Standing Committee whether or not the committee is made up of more than a quorum of the Board.

Section 8.3 Ad Hoc Committee Meeting.

It shall be the policy of the Board that meetings of Ad Hoc Committees shall be open to the public. However, where less than a quorum of the Board is appointed to serve on an Ad Hoc Committee, no notice need be given other than the posting of a notice of the time and place of such committee meetings on a publicly accessible bulletin board at the offices of the Authority, which is located at the Rancho Cordova Chamber of Commerce, 11070 White Rock Road, Suite 170, Rancho Cordova, California.

ARTICLE 9

RULES

Section 9.1 Amendment.

Any rule may be altered, amended or annulled at any time by a twothirds (2/3) vote of the Board provided a week's notice of such change is given to each Board member and provided further that the rule, as altered, amended or annulled, is not inconsistent with provisions of the Sacramento-Placerville Transportation Corridor Joint Powers Authority.

Section 9.2 Suspension.

Any rule may be temporarily suspended by the unanimous consent of all Board members present, provided not less than two-thirds (2/3) of the members are present.

Section 9.3 Robert's Rules.

All rules or order not herein provided for shall be determined in accordance with "Robert's Rules of Order."

Section 9.4 Copies - Authority Rules.

The Secretary shall furnish each member one or more copies of these Rules and provide a supply for public purposes.

Section 9.5 Copies - Robert's Rules.

The Secretary shall furnish each member a copy of Robert's Rules of Order.